
 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY FEBRUARY 19, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
 
   

1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Kupsik. 
 

2. Roll Call. 
 

3. Approve Minutes of the January 19th Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 
agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 
 

6. Downtown Design Review:  
 

a. Application by Jirapa Cox, to install an awning structure with signage and 
monument sign, located at 306 Center Street, Sabia Sabia, Tax Key No. 
ZOP00162. 

 
b. Application by Lake Geneva Architects, to install a rooftop addition structure on 

the second story to accommodate an interior stairway located at 623 W Main 
Street, Tax Key No. ZOP00290. 

 
c. Application by Letitia Erdman, to install an on-building sign located at 640 W 

Main Street, The Downtowner, Tax Key No. ZOP00306. 
 

d. Application by Pete Juergens, to install a pergola on the second floor exterior 
dining area &planter box for exterior dining area identification located at 831 
Wrigley Drive, Oakfire Restaurant, Tax Key No. ZOP00340. 

 
7. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for Applicant 

John G. Gyann, 8400 Gleneyre Rd, Darien, IL 60561, to reduce the rear yard setback 
from 180 feet to 25 feet as identified on the Trinke Estate Plat located at W1759 Hillside 
Rd, Tax Key No. ITE00015. 
 



8. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for Applicant 
Millard Properties, LLC. - Bob Cook, W6362 Dunham School Rd., Elkhorn, WI, 53121 
to create a rural residential lot of approximately 7.5 acres survey prepared by Olsen Land 
Surveying, LLC, located at Tax Key No. JG1400001. 
 

9. Review and Recommendation of revised Non-Exclusive Easements for review and 
approval of the Symphony Bay Development. Application for Symphony Bay submitted 
by Fairwyn LLC. 
 

10. Public Hearing and Recommendation of Annexation for the applicant Mark Larkin, 500 
Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the 1.95 acre property located at Tax 
Key No. JG2500014A, currently located in the Town of Geneva. 

 
11. Public Hearing and Recommendation of Lot Division for the applicant Mark Larkin, 500 

Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to divide the 1.95 acre property into a 1.24 
acre parcel to the north abutting Stone Ridge Drive, and a 0.71 parcel to the south. 
 

12. Public Hearing and Recommendation for a Zoning Map Change for the applicant Mark 
Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to divide the 1.95 acre property 
into two separate parcels - 1.24 acre parcel to the north abutting Stone Ridge Drive to 
Two-Family Residential (TR-6) zoning, and a 0.71 parcel to the south to Planned 
Business (PB). 

 
13. Public Hearing and Recommendation of an Amendment to the existing Conditional Use 

Permit filed by James and Kathryn Willett, 1320 W. Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147, to construct an addition to the existing first floor of the home located in the SR-4 
zoning district at 1320 W. Main Street, Tax Key No. ZYUP00094H. 
 

14. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit amendment filed by 
Southwind Prairie IV, LLC, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to amend the 
existing Conditional Use Permit which would allow the relocation of a maintenance 
building, sign installation, and redesign of an existing building allowing a roll up door 
install, Tax Key No. ZSWP0001 thru ZSWP0011. 

 
15. Discussion/Recommendation on Short Term Rental ordinance change. 

 
16. Adjournment 

 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in 

order for appropriateAccommodations. 

 

Posted 2/14/2018 



1 of 3 
January 15, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, JANUARY 15, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Kupsik called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Kupsik, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, Sarah Hill, Ann Esarco, Tyler Frederick. Absent 
(Excused) Ted Horne, Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney Draper, City Administrator Oborn, Building and 
Zoning Administrator Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee, and City Engineer Greg 
Governatori, Kapur & Associates. 
 
Approve Minutes of the December 18th Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
Mayor Kupsik stated items 12 and 13 were removed from the agenda by the applicant. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will to be limited to 5 minutes.   
None. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence. 

Charlene Klein 817 Wisconsin Street, Lake Geneva, WI  
Correspondence received opposing construction of a proposed gas station at 190 E Main Street: 

Maureen Marks, 834 Dodge St, Lake Geneva, WI 
Penny Roehrer 
 

 
Downtown Design Review 

6. Application by Tom Konopacki for “CR Goodfinds”, 2819 Weaver Ln., Batavia, IL 60510 to install an awning 
structure and sign at 731 W Main Street, Tax Key No. ZOP000274. 

   Tom Konopacki, 2819 Weaver Lane, Batavia, IL, owner, moving CR Goodfinds from the Fancy Mall to 731 W Main 
Street, presented his request. Zoning Administrator Walling stated the awning will line up with neighboring awnings 
and the awning meets the height and sign dimension requirements.  

 
 Skates/ Hill motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 
7. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Reeds Construction LLC, W3199 S 

Lake Shore Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to construct a new boat slip for Lynette M. Heimann Trust located 
at 620 S. Lake Shore Drive, Tax Key No. ZA315600001. 

 Jeff Reed, of Reeds Construction, W3199 S Lake Shore Drive, Lake Geneva, on behalf of the Lynette M. Heimann 
Trust, presented the request for a pier with 2 slips. Zoning Administrator Walling verified the application meets all the 
setback requirements.  

 
  Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 Skates/Esarco motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding and subject to DNR approval. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 
 



2 of 3 
January 15, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

8. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Reeds Construction LLC, W3199 S 
Lake Shore Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to construct a new boat slip for Pete & Holly Krug located at 870 
Maytag Road, Tax Key No. ZCE00011. 

 Jeff Reed, of Reeds Construction, W3199 S Lake Shore Drive, Lake Geneva, on behalf of the Lynette M. Heimann 
Trust, presented the request to change the pier. Zoning Administrator Walling verified the application meets all the 
setback requirements. 

 
 Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 Kupsik/Gibbs motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding and subject to DNR approval. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 
9. Public Hearing and Recommendation of the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP), filed by Steve Bieda, Mau & 

Associates, LLP, 400 Security Blvd, Green Bay, WI 54313, on behalf of Himansu Dhyani/Northern 
Management, to construct (4) four (8) eight unit multi-family buildings at l150 Wells Street, Tax Key No. 
ZYUP00142B. 
Jon LeRoy, Mau & Associates, LLP, on behalf of the developer, Northern Management, and the owner, Himansu 
Dhyani, presented their request. Leroy also passed building materials around to the Plan Commissioners. Zoning 
Administrator Walling stated communications between Mau & Associates and the City Staff has been helpful 
throughout the process and they have met zoning requirements for the City. Greg Governatori, Kapur & Associates, 
City Engineer, has reviewed the project and all comments have been addressed. Slavney said the revised plans reflect 
the comments from the Plan Commission. Alderman Skates asked for stone and brick samples. Leroy stated he had the 
colors but not the actual sample at this time.  

 
 Hill/Skates motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 Esarco/Frederick motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 Alderman Skates appreciates the willingness of Mau & Associates to work with City Staff and the neighbors, stating the 
 feedback from the neighbors has been positive. 
 
 
10. Public Hearing and recommendation to amend the existing General Development Plan (GDP), Application filed 

by Southwind Prairie IV, LLC,751 Geneva Parkway, to allow for the alteration of Building Locations, Building 
Exteriors, and site Design, located at 755 Southwind Drive, Lake Geneva Tax Key No. ZPRW00054A. 
Roger Wolff, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, presented his modified plan. Mr. Wolff presented the break-away 
barrier document to the Plan Commission. Walling asked Wolff if the revised plan was shared with the association. 
Mr. Wolff stated this plan was shown to the president of the association previous to this meeting. 
 

Speaker1: Jim Fuss, 1150 Park Dr, #1106, shared his concerns with signage, extra traffic, and construction truck traffic. 
Speaker 2: Mike Sedonas, 1150 Park Dr. #801, shared his concerns regarding insurance and liability with extra vehicles 

     during construction and would like to keep the properties separate. 
Speaker 3: John Swanson, 1150 Park Dr #701, said there are 4 parking spots for buildings 8 and 11 which Mr. Wolff will 

      move onto their property. He also shared concerns about keeping the two properties separate.   
Speaker 4: Carol Nevin, 1150 Park Dr #1102, shared her concerns about how this project will affect her property value. 
 
Mr. Wolff addressed the questions from the speakers. 
 
Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
Kupsik/Hill motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 



3 of 3 
January 15, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

 
11. Public Hearing and recommendation to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) Application 

filed by Southwind Prairie IV, LLC, 751 Geneva Parkway, to allow for the alteration of Building Locations, 
Building Exteriors, and site Design, located at 755 Southwind Drive, Lake Geneva, Tax Key No.ZPRW00054A. 
Roger Wolff, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, was present to answer questions. Alderman Skates clarified the 
parameters of the application. Planner Slavney stated the landscaping plan is very good. 

 
Hill/Skates motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
Hill/Gibbs motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Esarco, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 6 to 0. 
 
 
12. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Condition Use Permit request filed by Neal Gill W3323 Lake Forest 

Lane, Lake Geneva WI 53147 to establish an In-Vehicle Sales or Services commercial land use at 190 E. Main 
Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 Tax Key No. ZA370600001. 

 
Item 12 has been withdrawn from this evenings meeting agenda at the applicant’s request. 
 
13. Conceptual Review to establish a gas station, convenience store, Dunkin Donut with detached carwash located 

at 190 E. Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 Tax Key No. ZA370600001. 
 
Item 13 has been withdrawn from this evenings meeting agenda at the applicant’s request. 
 
Adjournment.  Hill/Skates motion to adjourn at 6:40 pm.  Motion carried 6 to 0.   
 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for an on building sign and an 
awning structure for a building at 306 Center Street, Tax Key No. ZOP00162. The City reviews all signs 
in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the Downtown Design standards, particularly 
quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
The applicant proposes a monument sign at the existing sign location at the corner Center Street and 
Geneva Street. Proposed sign colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. The sign 
size is within the maximum permitted area and the allowed colors as identified above. 
 
A projecting awning is also proposed, similar in color to the proposed monument sign.The proposed 
awning meets the allowed sizes as permitted in the CB zoning district.  
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. The proposed monument sign & awning meets the requirements of the Downtown Design 
Overlay Zoning district as proposed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the two requests of a proposed sign and awning as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Jirapa Cox  
800 Bennett Dr. 
Walworth, WI53184 
 

Request: 
306 Center St 
Downtown Design Review of a Monument Sign 
and Awning 
Tax Key No. ZOP00162 

Agenda Item #6A 









411 South Pearl Street, Janesville, Wisconsin
608.754.7158    (fax) 608.754.7890

Customer

Location

Project

Date

Sabai Sabai

Lake Geneva, WI

Awning Graphics

1-30-18

84” 

Graphic mmeasures 30” wide x 18” high

18” 

24” 

102” 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for a building addition to the 
rear area on the second for that would accommodate an interior stairway from the second floor for 
exiting of the building located at 623 W. Main Street, Tax Key No. ZOP00290. The City reviews all 
exterior alterations to buildings in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the Downtown 
Design. 
 
The applicant proposes a small second floor addition on the rear area for the construction of an interior 
renovation that will house the installation of a new stairway for egress from the second floor. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The plan as submitted have been reviewed and comply within the requirements of the Downtown 
Design Overlay Zoning district as proposed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requestas submitted. 

Applicant: 
Crown Dominion Commercial Properties LLC. 
5799 Steele Rd. 
Burlington, WI53105 
 

Request: 
623 W. Main Street 
Downtown Design Review of a 2nd Floor addition 
to accommodate an interior stairway 
Tax Key No. ZOP00290 

Agenda Item #6B 





















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for an on-building sign located 
at 640 W. Main St, Tax Key No. ZOP00306. The City reviews all signs in the CB zoning district to 
confirm that they conform to the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color 
requirements.  
 
The applicant proposes the installation for an on-building sign located at 640 W. Main St. the proposed 
sign colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. The sign size is within the maximum 
permitted area and the allowed colors as identified above. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Guidelines as depicted in the 
Downtown Design Overlay Zoning district as proposed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request of a proposed sign as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Letitia Erdman 
N3059 State Hwy 89 
Jefferson, WI 53549 
 

Request: 
Downtowner  
640 W. Main Street 
Downtown Design Review for an On-Building 
Sign Tax Key No. ZOP00306 

Agenda Item #6C 

















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to utilize flower 
planter boxes to better establish the exterior dining area on the public right of way & to install a 2nd floor 
pergola to the dining patio at 831 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP00340. The City reviews all exterior 
alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the Downtown Design standards, 
particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
The applicant proposes to locate at the existing exterior dining location the proposed movable planter 
boxes and a 2nd floor Pergola. Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. The proposed movable planter boxes & Pergola meets the requirements of the Downtown 
Design Overlay Zoning district as proposed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the two requests of a proposed flower boxes and Pergola as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Oakfire Properties LLC. 
831 Wrigley Dr. 
Lake Geneva, WI53147 
 

Request: 
831 Wrigley Dr. 
Downtown Design Review for exterior planter 
boxes and 2nd floor pergola installation 
Tax Key No. ZOP00340 

Agenda Item #6D 



















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
This request is to approve a request for Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for setback reductions 
for W1759 Hillside Rd. Tax Key No. ITE00015. 
 
This request is to amend plat of the Trinke Estates that was recorded in 1951 to reduce the rear 
setback from 180’ to the County R-1 Rear yard setback to 25’.  
 

The parcel included in this request does not currently have any buildings on the property. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ)  

As part of the consideration of the requested ETZ, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed ETZ 
review. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 
Zoning request (ETZ): as submitted, subject to approval Walworth County Land Use 
Zoning. 

Agenda Item:7 

Applicant: 
John G. Gyann Trust 
8400 Gleneyre Road 
Darien, IL 60561 

Request: ETZ Town of Lynn 
Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for setback 
reductions for W1759 Hillside Rd. 
Tax Key No. ITE00015 











 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 

This request is to approve a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to create a 7.473 acre parcel with 
buildings as per density requirements of Walworth County Zoning and land division located in 
the Town of Geneva. 

The parcels included in this CSM request are: 
 Parcel JG1400001 
 Future Parcel of 7.473 acres without existing buildings 

 

The result of this CSM will be a single parcel of 7.473 acres that will be in accordance with 
Walworth County Land Use and Zoning and standards. 

 

Project Details from CSM Submittal dated 9-11-17: 

The proposed CSM drawing is provided on Sheet 1 of 3 - job # 2016.143 depicts the proposed 
parcel after the lot separation. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ) 
and review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CSM, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CSM. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 
Zoning request (ETZ) and review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): as 
submitted, subject to approval for both parcels, and Walworth County Land Use Zoning. 

Agenda Item:8 

Applicant: 
Millard Properties LLC – Bob 
Cook 
W6362 Dunham School Road 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

Request: ETZ Town of Geneva 
Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ) to create a 
CSM for a 7.473 acre parcel located south of 
Springfield Rd. and North of Bowers Rd. from 
parcel JG1400001 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 



Ci砂QfLa庇Geneva

APPLICATION FOR LAND DIVISION REVIEW

[三園 CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP or SUBDⅣISION PLAT

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CuRRENT OwNER:

豊器。鵜島‾制球　二
恥Q斗　小量、弓も乱l

皿EPHONENuMBEROFCuRRENTOwRER: (焦L ) fts一征P)　　　　　臆臆臆

E皿00DR挑S: 」畔
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AppLICANT:

盤諜竺菩誓言的空し両一半二二
時二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二二
TELEPHONEN踊BEROFAppLICANT: ~喜

田00D珊SS 」町包めls。“…叫等C中　　　書臆臆臆-

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SuRVEYOR:

ら蝕も無　恥で

TELEPHONE NuMBER OF SuRVEYOR: 晴臆臆喜劇

SHORT STATEMENT DESCRIBENG PURPOSE OF APPLICATION : 瓢田圃

臆的恥的㈱搾巾x勧姉もI王/5約月C蛭の牝あ軸心昨

二的来?柵を(庇1両軸I神勅料理叱「蒋短勅勘でにも心は9A.I

臆往蛤　の丁目　診て.7鉦略も鴫A」拙0航叫的⊂ぐち良迎

⊆」臆臆臆書冊偽時世CαG舵出動拓でo胴Cて笹臆臆臆些

¶長嶋手刷恥脱　化畦　恥振乱巧め胸章日′竹に　月謝　時人出し辞

的凍掠れ姐一輝飢晶`隔・ (I福頓少



SuBMITTAL CHECKLIST

__阜〇〇〇

豊商量

LocATION MLP SHOWING LOCATION OF PARCELS TO BE DIVIDED OR PARTIALLY
DIⅥDED rmH TowN OR TowNS, AND PARCELS WITHEN l ,000-FT OF BOUNDARY OF

SUBJECT PROPERTY.

SKETCH MAP ro APPROXIMATE SCALE SHOWING ENT【RE PARCELS TO BE DIⅥDED OR

PARTIALLY DIVIDED, AND SHOWING THE APPROXIMATE CONFIGURATION OF PROPOSED

LOTS AND ROADS WITH皿N THOSE PARCELS.

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA SIGNATURE BLOCK ON FACE OF CSM oR PLAT, PER

STATE STATUTES.

PROViDE 5 FULL SETS AND 20 - 1 1 " x 17" copIES OF CSM oR PLAT PRIOR TO PLACEMENT

ON PLAN CoMMISSION AGENDA.

PROVⅡ)E AN ELECTRONEC COPY OF THE FULL APPLICATION PACKET TO THE LAKE GENEVA

BUILDING AND ZONENG DEPARTMENT AT BZADMIN(あC丁TYOFLAKEGEN EVA. COM OR

BZCLERK@cITYOFLAKEGENEVA.COM

I AM AWARE THAT THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA IS ACTIVELY ENGAGED EN THE REVIEW, APPROVAL OR DENEAL

OF LAND DIVISIONS WITHIN ITS ExTRATERRITORIAL LAND DIVISION REVIEW AREA.

I uNDERSTAND THAT THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA LAND DIVISION ORDENANCE REQUIRES THE CITY TO DENY

LAND DIViSIONS WHICH CREATE NEW, BUILDABLE PARCELS OR LOTS WITHIN THE ExTRATERRITORIAL AREA

WITH OVERALL DENSITY THAT EXCEEDS MORE THAN ONE DWELLING UNIT PER THIRTY-FIVE ACRES UNLESS

THE CITY DETERMENES THAT THE LAND DIViSION CONSTITUTES INFILL DEVELOPMENT.

○仁〇一㌢わ嶋
DATE

し 
S哩胆oFAppLICANT 



Cost Recovery #

Petiti oner Name Pr匂ect Address

OFFICE USE ONLY Description of Request

A望reement for Services

REIMBURSABLE BY THE PETITIONER / APPLICANT. The city may retain the services

of the professional ∞usultants (including plamers, engineers, arChitects, attOmeyS, enVirormental

specialists, reCreation specialists, and o血er experts) to assist in the City’s review of a proposals

coming before the Plan commission and/or Common Council. The submittal of a development

proposal application or petition by a Petitioner shall be construed as an agreement to pay for such

professional review servi∞S aPPlical)le to the proposal including any financing charges that may

a∞rue. The City applies the changes for these services to the Petitioner. The City Administrator at

any tine may requlre an apPlicant to submit an advance deposit of $500 to $5,000 depending on the

complexity and anticipated invoivement of the City,s consulta血tS Or continuing advance deposits

against future billings by the City for recovery ofcosts provide by this ordinance 98-935(4)・ An

advanced deposit sha‖ be required for the appIication reIated to Extrater誼orial ma備ers.

Surplus deposits shall be retumed to the Applicant at血e conclusion ofthe prQject.

喧し鮎　6.0

恥。。t:　　　偲0也- ○蛇L。丁　に湿肥

pr。j。。tAddress:　V範恥軌二二二二二二

Nam。:　　　乱もDもし㈹　6小説Et4,D,C..し追

Address :

as applicant/petitioner for

」 Q;W¥

cell Phone: (上皇連) - _包i〇〇〇子細　　　Phone: (塑ZJ - 」壁書-子細

Email:　C かけ印当　同人

Dat。dthis ’る妙　Day。f　恒心弧油∴∴ ,20⊥巴





/‾
、
、
、

C
E
R
T
I
F
I
E
D
 
S
U
R
V
E
Y
 
M
A
P
 
N
o

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
W
a
l
w
o
r
t
h
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
 
R
e
g
i
s
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
D
e
e
d
s

“
¥
 
-
-
へ
_
 
」
里
書
些
笠
田

J
o
b
 
r
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
n
o
.
 
2
0
1
6
"
1
4
3

S
h
e
e
t
 
l
 
o
f
　

3
　

S
h
e
e
t
s
.

7
5
 
r
o
d
s
 
(
1
芝
3
7
.
5
“
)
 
9
f

し
h
e
 
S
。
u
し
h
e
a
s
し
1
/
4
 
0
f
 
S
e
c
し
i
〇
五
1
4
-
露
-
1
?

E
a
s
t
 
l
i
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
l
/
4
 
o
重
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
1
4
-
2
-
1
7
-

-
-
　
　
　
　
　
-
-
　
　
　
　
　
-
-
　
　
　
　
　
-
一

s
l
。

1
3
・

5
8
,
,
留

　
2
6
4
8
・

0
2
’

r
e
c
a
r
d
e
d
 
a
s
(
S
l
a
1
亀

′
5
8
・

・
田

2
6
4
8
.
2
0
′

)
S
t
a
t
e
 
P
l
a
n
e

C 串 R 易 室 賀 因 D S U R < 因 Y M A P N ○ ○

○ ○ 邑 邑 i n 幕 S O 尋 h の a S こ 、 阜 O f 害 S O u 舌 $ S 二 へ 阜 O f S 蛋 i 亀 二 ㌔ ○ ○ W 皿 ~ N O 鼻 骨 R 嘗 駕 〇 二 翠 皐

↓ O W 皿 O f G e 暴 く a . W 邑 w 皇 軍 C O u 【 卓 . W i s 8 房 i n ・

鐸 霊 へ 声 薄 墨

N . 　 的 ∽ 心 . ① 帥 L ↓ ①

田 . 袖 一 心 ト や ○ ○ 的 . 調 印

M i 細 “ a 邑 P r e p e 邑 e s ∵ 「 「 C

W 浅 の 山 口 巨 富 S O ぎ ○ ○ R O a d

巾 匿 8 冒 ) W i s 8 霊 i n . 浅 } さ

M a p p i n O O d 蕎 ‥ D e 8 農 き e 後 室 ) 8 - 」 ・

S O i 】 s ‥ Q A 七 ㌔ K - A . M w D い O M y B 玲 S 雪 ・

R ∈ 調 二 　 を s i d c 呈 邑 一 C 董 雪 e 己 租 -

S c a 一 e i n F 8 書 .

余 S O u 手 W i s 8 n S i n S 幕 e 二 P . e B O 揮 い S

E - 賛 ○ ○ 旨 . W i s 8 霊 草 . 鵜 - ご

↓ e 吾 h O n の ‥ ( ま い ) 鳶 雪 ぎ 曇

F a o s ざ i - e 二 山 貧 ) ↓ 山 芋 ∞ e 宝

諦 持 論 彊 弼 轟 轟 謹

ー 一 一 = - 肌 e 一

N e 昌 泰 ‥ C ・ い

N e 〔 ㊦ S …

ト B e 営 農 S お お お n 8 d ○ ○ 婁 お 出 a s こ i 罵 e f 幕 S O 巨 e a s ニ ≧ O f

S e 宛 O n - ‡ ご 青 馬 8 邑 e d a s N - 。 - 浅 ∞ 。 W i n { 幕 W i s 8 房 i 冒

S 至 e P - 嘗 e C 8 邑 畳 の S y s 尋 童 ) S e - 巨 Z O 黒 二 e 玉 ロ ー 電 ) ・

ド S 訂 s ○ ○ p e S i n 舌 の 蛍 e a e f 幕 s O i 言 〇 五 n g s d 0 呈 ① × 8 邑 - い ざ

の ・ 諜 弾 ま 隷 書 。 a 。 竃 。 S の S

」 の ー 　 　 } い e -

∈ n p “ a ‡ e d 「 a 口 d

O w n e d  b y  P 】 a ↑ t e 「

N O n O d  A - -

○ ○ U ⑭ 「 >

O 「 S O 之

S ・ N e ① ∽

甲 K エ O R 芝 ●

≦ -

諾 謡 藷

U n p “ a 雷 の d 「 a ロ d

O w n の d  b y  o 手 雪 s

z e n e d  A - ト

搭 罷 工 註 轟 r

N . 　 〇 〇 〇 的 . ○ ○ 中 軸 伽

" 世 塵 は ・ 博 庶 博 1 I ÷

C 亀 細 く ① D a 青 a

R 中 d i u ∽ ∴ ∴ ∴ ∴ ∴ 重 夏 草 d

∽ 〇 〇 〇 〇 〇 . 　 S ヾ 軸 的 - 心 心 = W ∞ 「 ひ γ

調 ○ 戸 〇 〇 〇 　 S 鋤 的 。 e γ 鼻 雪 幸 い ① ∽ . 鼻 や

N ① ヾ 〇 〇 〇 　 S 鋤 の 。 - や 鼻 α ○ ○ W 二 審 ○ ○ -

T a n g の ‡

S 着 の 。 - ① ● 的 の = 季

N ト の 。 ○ ○ . 的 中 - 由

N 〇 秒 。 - 心 . 鼻 的 . - 田

調 印 の . 伽 午

ミ ¥

¥

表 ○ ↑ 　 輸

C . S . 斉 . q 霊 Ⅹ

S O u ↑ h 〕 i ロ の O f  t h e

「 e O O 昌 d

" 鐸 鵡 韓 謹 彊 謙 霊 。 ・

● F O u 邑 細 さ n R O d 完 へ 皐 。 巨 a .

◆ 廿 書 き S p i 邑 - e

O S の { H 雲 P i p e 二 一 昏 ・ ㌦ 阜 - - 〇 〇 品 ・

w の i g 宣 品 二 い き s ・ ¥ - i n ・ 中 身 声

( ) R 8 0 r d の d 細 雪 む き a 百 〇 皿

N ∞ ① 。 の せ 鼻 〇 、 、 W 　 ○ ○ 心 . ∞

才 S 。 i - 冨 n O O 　 ∴ 需 轟 薄 型

N . 　 卿 調 的 - ○ ○ 心 . ∞ 伽

に 十 悔 悟 i ほ ら 肯 悟 に 「 - 1 - 」 に 虚 膚 十

U 烏 1 鎮 ま e d 種 害 d e お ご P O d b y O 手 e 葛 z O n e d A ⊥



/へ、→¥¥

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. Vo萱. _ Page

Located in the Southeast l/4 o地e Southeast l′4 of S∞tion 14, Toun 2 North’Range 17 East’ToⅧ of Geneva’

Walwo血County, Wisconsin.

Legal Description

A parcel ofl狐d located in血e So血east l伯of血e Southeast l′4 ofSection 14, Toun 2 No血, Range 17 Eas草Oun

ofGeneva, Walwo血Courty, Wisconsin’described as follows‥ Commence at血e East l/4 comer of said Section 14;

血ence South lO1 3・58・・ East, along the East血e of said Southeast l/4 and the centerline of Bowers Road, 1684.32 feet

to a poiut ofcurvature; thence Southwestedy along said center血e and the arc of a curve to the right (Redius=300.00

feet chord bears So血7O32-44" West 91.57 feet) 91.93 feet to瓜e Poiut ofBegiming; thence continue Southwesterly

along said centerline and arc of a curve to仙Le right (Radius=00.00 feet chord bears South 32007-44" West 163.42

feet) 165.5 1 feet; thence South 47O56-02・一West along said centerline ofBowers Road’634.09 f弼thence South

48OO2-24一・ West, along said centerline’460・76 feet to a poiut on the South line of said So血east l/4 of Section 14;

thence North 89054'48'・ West, along said South血e, 304.80 fost; thence North lO13'58'一West along the West line of

血e East 75 rods (1237.5一) ofsaid Southeast l/4 ofSection 14’340.00 feet; thence North 66O2l-04一一East 1323.53 feet

to the Point ofBegiming.

Intending to rezone 8.424 acres (366’936 sq.ft.) of land, mOre Or less.

Intending to rezone 7.473 acres (325’5 13 sq心of land’mOre Or less’eXClusive ofthe right ofway of Bowers Road.

Surveyorl s Certi範cate

I, Douglas G. OIson, Wisconsin Professional Land Surveyor, do herdy certify that血e property hereon described has

been surveyed under ny direction and that也e plat shown hereon is a correct representation of all lot lines and that I
」1　臆　`「臆臆1_」二○○二_二臆《__

236.34 of血e Wisconsin Statutes, the Subdivision
have餌1y complied with the owner’s/agent’s instructions, Section

ControI Ordin狐Ce, Walworth County’Wiscousin’Town of Genev‘ち

the City of Lcke Geneva Municipal Code, Cfty of Lake Geneva, Wa

Date :

Revised :

Wa獲worth County Approva獲

Approved伽s day of

Town Board Approva量

Approved this day of

DOUGLAS

OしSON

S-2093

ELKHORN,

WI

This iustrument was drafted by Douglas G. OIson

Wisconsin Professional L狐d Surveyor No. 2093

alwo血County, Wisconsin, and Section 66 of

h County, Wisconsin・

G. 01so叫P.L.S. 2093

2018 by the Walworth Courty Zoning Agency.

Tim Brellen血in, Chaixperson

201 8 by the Town Board ofthe Town of Geneva.

Joseph F. Kopecky, Chairperson

Job reference no. 2016.143

Shect ⊥ of上しShcets・



/‾、¥

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. Vo賞. _ Page

Located in血e Southeast l/4 ofthe Southeast l/4 of Section 14, Toun 2 No血, Range 1 7 East’Toun of Geneva’

Walworth County, Wisconsln.

ExtraterritoriaⅡ Approva暮

This Cert脆ed Survey Map is hereby approved this - day of

Commission of the City Of Lake Geneva? Wisconsin.

Alan Kupsik

Plan Commission Chairperson

Brenda Follensbee

Plan Commission Secretary

2018 by the Plan

Owner,s Cert櫛cate

As owner I hereby certify瓜at I have caused the land described on this Certified Survey Map to be surveyed’divided,

mapped and dedicated as represented on血is map, and I hereby declare the restrictions froun on this map to be a

covenaut Iuming with the land, bind血g on a11餌鵬ouners thereof I also certify血at血is map is required to be

submitted to血e following for approval: Walwo血Courty, Toun of Geneva & Cfty of Lake Geneva.

Robert J. Cook

Millard Properties, LLC

2018, the above named Robert J. Cook・ tO me

known to be血e person who executed血e foregoing instrument and aclmowledged the same.

Notary Public’

My commission expIfeS

County, Wisconsin.

Job reference no. 2016.143

Sheet JL of _1 Sheets.

STATEOFWISCONSIN　)

)SS

COUNTY OF WALWORTH )

Persona11y came before me皿s _ day of



Legend
Survey date:

Revisions:Scale in Feet
1" = 200'

0' 100' 200' 400' 600'

Job Reference Number

Sheet  1  of  1  Sheets2016 .143

2016.143

Drawing Name:

Property Exhibit
Tax Parcel JG 1400001,

of

located in the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of Section 14, Town
2 North, Range 17 East, Town of Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin.

N

EW

S

B
o

w
er

s 
 R

o
a

d
(6

6'
 W

id
e)

Tax Parcel

JG 1400001

Approx. 53.9 Acres

Approx. 53.3 Acres
Exclusive of R.O.W.

 Facsimile:  (262) 723-8044

45 South Wisconsin Street  |  P.O. Box 322

LAND SURVEYING,
Email:  doug@olsonsurveying.com

Surveyed for: Millard Properties, LLC
W6362 Dunham School Road
Elkhorn, Wisconsin. 53121

O
LLC

LSON Elkhorn, Wisconsin.  53121
Telephone:  (262) 723-3434

Website:  www.olsonsurveying.comRural   |   Residential   |   Commercial

of Symbols & Abbreviations

Bearings referenced to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of
Section 14-2-17, recorded as N1°13'17"W in the Wisconsin 
State Plane Coordinate System, South Zone, (NAD-27).

Portion of

North of Former
Railroad ROW

Tax Parcel
JG 1400001

Approx. 96.1 Acres

Approx. 91.3 Acres
Exclusive of R.O.W.s

Portion of

South of Former
Railroad ROW

Tax Parcel
JG 1400001

Approx. 79.4 Acres

Approx. 75.6 Acres
Exclusive of R.O.W.s

Portion of

South of the Centerline
of Springfield Road

Tax Parcel
JG 1400001

Approx. 16.7 Acres

Approx. 15.7 Acres
Exclusive of R.O.W.s

Portion of

North of the Centerline
of Springfield Road

South of Former
Railroad ROW &

Bow
er

s 
 R

oa
d (6

6' 
W

id
e)

Springfie
ld Road

(66' W
ide)

Proposed Certified Survey Map
8.424 Acres

Proposed
C.S.M.

A parcel of land described in a Warranty Deed recorded December 2, 2016 as Document No.
937185 as shown below:

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of Section 14, T2N, R17E,
Town of Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, more fully described as: A strip of land 75
rods wide off from the entire East side of Section No. 14, T2N, R17E; also commencing
at a point 75 rods West of the Northeast corner of said Section running thence South to
North line of the Western Union R. R. thence West along said railroad line to the center
of Section 14, thence North in the center line of said Section to the North line thereof;
thence East in said North line 85 rods to place of commencement;

EXCEPTING and reserving from said land the following described parcels to-wit: Lands
conveyed by deed from Michael Rouse to Racine and Mississippi R.R. Co. dated April 12,
1856 and recorded May 5,1856 in Volume 23 of Deeds on page 218;

ALSO EXCEPTING and reserving lands described in deed from Michael Rouse and wife
to Chicago, Lake Geneva and Pacific Ry. Co. dated January 21, 1887 recorded February
22, 1887 in Volume 72 of Deeds page 494;

ALSO EXCEPTING the following: Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 14;
thence West on the South line of said Section 58 rods to the center of the highway; thence
North-easterly in the center of said highway to a point in the East line of said Section 52
rods North of said Southeast corner of Section 14; thence South 52 rods to place of
commencement;

ALSO EXCEPTING the following: Commencing at the Northeast comer of Section 14,
T2N, R17E, Town of Geneva, thence West 256.24 feet, thence South parallel with the
East line of said Section 170.00 feet; thence East 256.24 feet to a point in the East line
of said Section, thence North in the East line of said Section 170.00 feet to the place of
beginning.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING all that portion thereof now known as Certified Survey
Map No. 346 recorded March 22, 1974 in Volume 2 of Certified Surveys, page 125, as
Document No. 676230.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING all that portion thereof now known as Lot 1 of Certified
Survey Map No. 4035 recorded March 8, 2007 in Volume 25 of Certified Survey Maps,
page 89, as Document No. 702842.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 14,
Town 2 North, Range 17 East, Town of Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, described as
follows:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 14; thence South l° 13' 17"
East, along the East line of said Northeast 1/4 of Section 14, 170.00 feet to the Point of
Beginning; thence continue South l° 13' 17" East, along said East line, 10.00 feet; thence
North 89° 56' 12" West 424.23 feet to an iron pipe; thence North l° 28' 57" West 180.02 feet
to an iron pipe on the North line of said Northeast 1/4 of Section 14; thence South 89° 56' 12"
East, along said North line, 168.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence South l° 28' 57" East 170.02
feet to an iron pipe; thence South 89° 56' 12" East 256.27 feet to the Point of Beginning.

                                ALSO

FURTHER EXCEPTING all that portion thereof now known as Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map
No. 4748 recorded December 8, 2017 in Volume 31 of Certified Survey Maps, page 237,
as Document No. 958674.

Zoned C-2



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
 
The applicant is submitting an application to Review for Non-Exclusive Public Utility Easements for 
Symphony Bay development.  
 
The City attorney has reviewed the document for additions or alterations. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of therequest as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Fairwyn SB, INC 
 

Request: 
Review of Non-Exclusive Public Utility 
Easements  

Agenda Item:9 



|    |     | 
|    |     | 
|    |     | 
|  Document No.  |     | 
|    |     | 

| 
| 

NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT   | 
AGREEMENT       | 

| 
| 
| 
|  
| Return to: 
| Attorney Charles W. Pollard 
| CLAIR LAW OFFICES, S.C. 
| P.O. Box 445 
| Delavan, WI    53115-0445 
|  
 
 

 
 

THIS NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 
granted by FAIRWYN SB, INC., a Wisconsin corporation; SOUTHLAND FARMS, LLC, a Wisconsin 
limited liability company and the CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, a municipal corporation existing pursuant to 
the laws of the State of Wisconsin and located in Walworth County, Wisconsin (collectively “Grantors”) 
to WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA UTILITY 
COMMISSION, WE ENERGIES, TIME WARNER CABLE, AT&T TELEPHONE, their respective 
successors and assigns (collectively “Grantees”). 
 
 
 R E C I T A L S :  
 

A. The Grantors are the fee holders of certain real property in the City of Lake Geneva, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, generally known as Symphony Bay Subdivision more particularly described 
in the final plat of Symphony Bay, recorded on May 31, 2016 in the office of the Walworth County Register 
of Deeds as Document No. 926074 (“Final Plat”).   

 
B. Southland Farms, LLC granted certain easements for electric and communication services 

to the Grantees on the Final Plat. 
 
C. Southland Farms, LLC dedicated certain land designated, delineated, and described on the 

Final Plat to the City of Lake Geneva, which was accepted by the City of Lake Geneva. 
 
D. After the recording of the Final Plat, lots 1 through 23, 52 through 60, and 80 through 147 

in the Final Plat were sold by way of land contract to Fairwyn SB, Inc, as evidenced by the Land Contract 
recorded on December 11, 2017 in the office of the Walworth County Register of Deeds as Document No. 
958798. 

 
E. Additional easements for electric and communication service, beyond the easements 



granted in the Final Plat, have been requested by certain Grantees. 
 
F. The purpose of this Easement is to provide non-exclusive public utility easements for the 

for electric and communication service as further described herein. 
 
 AGREEMENT 
 

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Grant of Easement.  The Grantors do hereby grant, convey, transfer, bargain and assign 
onto the Grantees and their successors and assigns, a non-exclusive easement to construct, install, operate, 
repair, maintain, and replace from time to time, facilities used in connection with underground transmission 
and distribution of electricity and electric energy, telephone, data, and cable TV facilities (“Facilities”) for 
such purposes as the same is now or may hereinafter be used, all in, over, under, across, along, and upon 
that certain real property situated in the County of Walworth, State of Wisconsin, and said Easement Area 
to be described as: 

 
All that portion of Symphony Bay Subdivision recorded on May 31, 2016 
in the office of the Walworth County Register of Deeds as Document No. 
926074, as designated, delineated, described, and shown as “5 Foot Wide 
Easement Area,” “10 Foot Wide Easement Area,” and “15 Foot Wide 
Easement Area” on the Symphony Bay Subdivision Public Utility Plat 
Map attached hereto and incorporated herein as “Exhibit A.” 

 
2. Restrictions on Utility Appurtenances.  All installed lines must be underground with 

only transformers, pedestals, and other appurtenances placed on or above the ground surface.  No 
transformer, pedestal, or other appurtenance placed on or above the ground shall measure more than 4’ 
wide by 4’ deep and no taller than 3’ measured above grade without prior written authorization from the 
Grantor whose property is affected.  

 
3. Consistent Uses Allowed.  Grantors reserve the right to use the Easement for purposes 

that will not interfere with the Grantees full enjoyment of the Easement rights granted in this Agreement, 
except that Grantors agree within the Easement Area not to construct or place buildings without the express 
written consent of the Grantees.   

 
4. Tree Trimming.  Grantees shall not trim or remove mature trees unless trimming or 

removal shall be necessary in an emergency situation. Except that Grantees may, with written approval 
from the Grantor whose property is affected, trim mature trees as necessary to complete initial installation 
of said Facilities. 

 
5. Restoration and Damages.  Each Grantee shall restore or cause to have restored all 

damages to property caused by that Grantee's construction, maintenance or removal of its facilities, 
including, but not limited to, removal or damage of trees, bushes, brush, and lawns; and/or removal or 
damage of driveways, roads, improvements, or structures as permitted herein. 

 
6. Indemnification. Each Grantee shall indemnify the Grantors from and against all loss, 

costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees), injury, death, or damage to persons or property that at any time 
during the term of this Agreement may be suffered or sustained by an person or entity resulting from that 
Grantee's activities conducted on the property, regardless of the cause of the injury, except to the extent 
caused by gross negligence or misconduct of the Grantors’ or their agents or employees. 



7. Covenants Run with Land.  All terms and conditions in this Agreement, including the 
benefits and burdens, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be 
enforceable by the Grantors and the Grantees and their respective successors and assigns.  The parties 
named as Grantors in this Agreement and any successors or assigns to the Grantors as fee simple owners 
of the subject property shall cease to have any liability under this Agreement with respect to facts or 
circumstances arising after the party has transferred its fee simple interest in the subject property. 
 

8. Non-Exclusive Easement.  The Easement herein granted is subject to all easements and 
encumbrances of record and is non-exclusive, provided that later-granted easements shall be subject to the 
Grantees’ rights and uses as permitted herein. Grantees shall comply with Wis. Admin. PSC 113 as it relates 
to communication firms.   

 
9. Non-Use.  Non-use or limited use of the Easement rights granted in this Agreement shall 

not prevent the benefiting party from later use of the Easement rights to the fullest extent authorized in this 
Agreement. 
 

10. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Wisconsin. 
 

11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and 
may not be changed except by a written document executed and acknowledged by all parties to this 
Agreement and duly recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of Walworth County, Wisconsin. 
 

12. Notices.  All notices to any party to this Agreement shall be delivered in person or sent by 
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, documenting the other party’s actual receipt 
thereof. 

 
GRANTORS: 
 
Fairwyn SB, Inc.     
875 Townline Road, Suite 103 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147 
 
Southland Farms, LLC     
875 Townline Road, Suite 103 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147  
 
City of Lake Geneva 
626 Geneva Street 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147 
 
GRANTEES: 
 
Wisconsin Power and Light Company 
Attn: Real Estate Department 
4902 North Biltmore Lane 
Madison, WI  53713 
 
City of Lake Geneva Utility Commission 
361 Main Street 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147 



 
WE Energies 
4902 North Biltmore Lane 
Madison, WI  53718 
 
Time Warner Cable 
1320 North Dr. Martin Luther King Drive 
Milwaukee, WI  53212 
 
AT&T 
304 South Dewey Street 44 
Eau Clare, WI  54701 
 

 
13. Invalidity.  If any term or condition of this Agreement, or the application of this Agreement 

to any person or circumstance, shall be deemed invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, 
or the application of the term or condition to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held 
invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and condition shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 

14. Waiver.  No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or power arising out 
of any default under any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver of 
the right or power.  A waiver by a party of any of the obligations of the other party shall not be construed 
to be a waiver of any breach of any other terms or conditions of this Agreement. 
 

15. Enforcement.  Enforcement of this Agreement may be by proceedings at law or in equity 
against any person or persons violating or attempting or threatening to violate any term or condition in this 
Agreement, either to restrain or prevent the violation or to obtain any other relief.  If a suit is brought to 
enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable 
attorney fees, from the non-prevailing party. Venue for any litigation brought shall be Walworth, County. 
 

16. No Public Dedication.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed a gift or dedication of 
any portion of the easements granted under this Agreement to the general public or for any public purpose 
whatsoever. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; 
Signature Page Attached] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Dated: _______________________________  Dated:  _________________________________ 
 
 
      
 
FAIRWYN SB, INC. 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Brian C. Pollard, President and 
 Sole Shareholder 
 
 
 
By:  SOUTHLAND FARMS, LLC, a    CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, a municipal 
Wisconsin limited liability company   corporation 
 
By:  Fairwyn Real Estate, LLC, a Wisconsin 
limited liability company, sole    By:___________________________________ 
member of Southland Farms, LLC   Name Printed___________________________ 
                               Title:  _________________________________ 
Fairwyn Development Corporation a 
Wisconsin corporation, as manager of 
Fairwyn Real Estate, LLC 
 
_____________________________________ 
Brian C. Pollard, President of  
Fairwyn Development Corporation 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me  SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me 
this ______ day of ________________, 2018.  this ______ day of __________________, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Notary Public, Walworth County, Wisconsin  Notary Public, Walworth County, Wisconsin 
My commission _________________________  My commission __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant has submitted a petition for annexation by unanimous consent to the City of Lake Geneva. 

The subject property is currently part of the Town of Geneva. 

 

The subject property contains 1.95 acres, and is adjacent to the City on the north, east, and west 

boundaries of the property. The property is part of a remnant island of unannexed property, fully 

surrounded by the City. The proposed annexation would shrink the size of the town island, and thus is 

consistent with Wisconsin Statutes and case law. 

 

The subject property is depicted for future City expansion in the City’s Comprehensive Plan on Map 5, 

the Future Land Use Map. As such, the proposed annexation of the subject property is consistent with 

the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The Future Land Use Map designates the future development of the subject property in the Planned 

Business land use category for the south half, and in the Two-Family/Townhouse land use category for 

the north half.  The zoning and land division of the subject property will require separate City review 

processes which are distinct from, and follow, this annexation proposal. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission:  

The Plan Commission should vote on a motion that provides a recommendation to the Common Council 

about the proposed annexation. The Plan Commission should provide an explanation for its 

recommendation. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

Staff notes that the proposed annexation is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan, which shows a combination of the Planned Business and Two-Family/Townhouse 

future land use categories on the subject property. If the Plan Commission recommends annexation, this 

factor should be provided as an explanation for the favorable recommendation. 

 

If the Plan Commission does not recommend annexation, I believe the best explanation is that the timing 

of the requested annexation is not ideal, in that there is no public road access to the southern part of the 

subject property. 

 

       Michael A. Slavney, FAICP 

       City Planning Consultant 

Agenda Item 10 

Applicant: 

Mark Larkin 

500 South Stone Ridge Drive 

Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

Request: 

 

Annexation of 

Tax Key No. JG 2500014A 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant has submitted a petition for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division to create two lots 

on the subject property. The subject property is currently part of the Town of Geneva, but has been 

requested unanimous annexation to the City, and a Zoning Map Amendment. 

 

The subject property contains 1.95 acres, and is adjacent to the City on the north, east, and west 

boundaries of the property. The subject property is depicted for future City expansion in the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan on Map 5, the Future Land Use Map. The subject property is depicted for the Two-

Family Residential-6 zoning district in the north, and the Planned Business zoning district in the south. 

This proposed CSM provides a lot line that reflects the proposed Zoning Map amendment, and the 

Future Land Use Map designations. As such, the proposed CSM is consistent with the City of Lake 

Geneva Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission:  

The Plan Commission should vote on a motion that provides a recommendation to the Common Council 

about the proposed CSM land division. The Plan Commission should provide an explanation for its 

recommendation. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

Staff notes that the proposed CSM is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan, which shows a combination of the Planned Business and Two-Family/Townhouse 

future land use categories on the subject property. If the Plan Commission recommends approval of the 

CSM, this factor should be provided as an explanation for the favorable recommendation.  

 

If such a motion is approved, the Plan Commission should then make a separate motion to approve a 

variance to the Subdivision Code that waives the requirement that all new lots provide a minimum of 33 

feet of road frontage. (State Statutes provide the ability to consider a variance to the Subdivision 

Ordinance to the Plan Commission, and not to the Zoning Board of Appeals.) 

 

If the Plan Commission does not recommend approval of the CSM, I believe the best explanation is that 

the proposed southern lot is not adjacent to a public road. 

 

       Michael A. Slavney, FAICP 

       City Planning Consultant 

Agenda Item 11 

Applicant: 

Mark Larkin 

500 South Stone Ridge Drive 

Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

Request: 

 

Certified Survey Map of 

Tax Key No.: JG 2500014A 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant has submitted a proposed Zoning Map amendment for property, which is also proposed 

for annexation and land division by the City of Lake Geneva. The following report and 

recommendations are based on the assumption that said annexation is moving forward ahead of this 

proposed Zoning Map amendment. The proposed Zoning Map amendment would result in two zoning 

districts on the subject property that are divided consistent with the proposed CSM land division. 

 

The northern lot will be adjacent to the south side of South Stone Ridge Drive, and is proposed to be 

zoned Two-Family Residential-6 – (TR-6) the City’s zoning district to enable two-family residential 

development such as duplexes and twin homes. The same zoning district is present on both the east and 

west sides of the subject property. The southern lot will be adjacent to commercial properties taking 

access to Interchange North, and is proposed to be zoned Planned Business (PB), the City’s zoning 

district to enable retail and service development such as stores, restaurants, and professional services. 

The same zoning district is present on the east, south, and west sides of the subject property. 

 

The proposed zoning of the subject property is consistent with the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive 

Plan. Specifically, the Future Land Use Map designates the future development of the subject property 

in the Planned Business land use category for the south half, and in the Two-Family/Townhouse land 

use category for the north half.  The proposed zoning of the subject property will be subject to the 

approval of the requested annexation prior to acting on this proposed Zoning Map amendment. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission:  

The Plan Commission should vote on a motion that provides a recommendation to the Common Council 

about the proposed Zoning Map amendment. The Plan Commission should provide an explanation for 

its recommendation. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

Staff notes that the proposed Zoning Map amendment is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the 

City’s Comprehensive Plan, which shows a combination of the Planned Business and Two-

Family/Townhouse future land use on the subject property. If the Plan Commission recommends 

annexation, this factor should be provided as an explanation for the favorable recommendation. 

 

If the Plan Commission does not recommend annexation, I believe the best explanation is that the timing 

of the requested Zoning Map amendment is not ideal, in that there is no road access to the southern area. 

 

       Michael A. Slavney, FAICP 

       City Planning Consultant 

Agenda Item 12 

Applicant: 

Mark Larkin 

500 South Stone Ridge Drive 

Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

Request: 

 

Zoning Map Amendment of 

Tax Key No.: JG 2500014A 

















 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 
install a second floor addition without expanding the building foot print on the property. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the amendment to proposed Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
 
The proposed new installation of the 2nd floor addition. 
 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 
James and Kathryn Willett 
1320 W. Main Street 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
Amend Existing Conditional Use Permit for  
Single family home 2nd floor addition 
Tax Key No. ZYUP00094H 

Agenda Item:13 



 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 
plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 
jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 
plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character 
of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, 
public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or 
general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 
jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the proposed 
amendment to the conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 

















































 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: February 19, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 

The applicant is submitting to amend the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) to relocate a service 
maintenance building, install a sign, and to alter the existing office building by installing an 
overhead door. 

The proposed request does not require additional parking spaces. The site currently provides 
parking for the office area and the building will be for maintenance staff only. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plan 
(PIP) be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use 
Map. This map recommends the land use category for the subject property. This category allows 
for neighborhood-scale mixed use development. The proposed PIP zoning is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base 
zoning standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned 
Development (PD), the current zoning of the property, provides that comparison zoning district. 
The project is requesting the following:  

As no other changes are proposed to the site that would change existing conditions, no other 
flexibilities are requested.  
 
Approved Land Uses: 
The PIP enables the following land uses as permitted: 

 Planned Development (PD) 
 

Zoning Map Amendment / PIP - Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP 

Applicant: 
Southwind Prairie IV, LLC. 
Roger Wolff 
751 Geneva Pkwy. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request:755 Southwind Drive 
Amend Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) to 
allow Signage, building location, building 
alteration 

Agenda Item:14 
 



 

 

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Development / Precise Implementation Plan 
(PIP) step, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning 
Map amendment to PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 
 
A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors 
of Item 2, of the following. 
 

1. The proposed PIP furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA). 

 
2. One or more of the following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed on 

the current Official Zoning Map: 
a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 

conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 
b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 
 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the 
environs of the subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3 of the 
following: 
 

1. The proposed PIP does not further the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined 
in Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). 
 

2. One or more of the following factors have not arisen that are not properly addressed 
on the current Official Zoning Map: 



 

 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 
conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 
 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain the 
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related 
to the environs of the subject property. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Precise 
Implementation Plan (PIP)as submitted, all other zoning requirements have been met. 

 



















 
 

 

 

To: The City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, City Planning Consultant, FAICP 

Date: February 5, 2018 

Re: Regulation of Tourist Rooming Houses / Short-Term Rentals 

 

Introduction 

Recent changes to Wisconsin state law have severely restricted the ability of local units of 
government to regulate tourist rooming houses (TRHs) (also known as short-term rental units). 
With the rise of services to advertise and make reservation for TRHs, such as AirBnB and VRBO, 
the City should proactively address this issue. 

This memo summarizes the ability and limitations for regulating and licensing this form of land use. 
City staff is seeking Plan Commission and Common Council views on this issue, in order to prepare 
draft amendments to the Municipal Code for later consideration. 

 

Definition 

Chapter ACTP 72 addresses hotels, motels, and tourist rooming houses. In Section 72.03(20), TRHs 
are defined as: 

All lodging places and tourist cabins and cottages, other than hotels and motels 
in which sleeping accommodations are offered for pay to tourists and 
transients. It does not include private boarding houses or rooming houses not 
accommodating tourists or transients, or bed and breakfast establishments 
regulated under ACTP 73. 

The state also allows local government to limit TRH use to a maximum of 180 days during a 
calendar year, and to no less than seven consecutive days. In this respect, TRHs could be a form of 
accessory land use to the primary use of the property as a dwelling unit. 

 

Current Land Use and Zoning District Regulations 

The City currently regulates TRHs as a form of Vacation Rental Home under the Commercial 
Indoor Lodging land use category, along with hotels and motels. As such, currently TRHs are 
restricted to the city’s zoning districts that accommodate large-scale business development, including 
Planned Office, General Business, Planned Business, and Central Business. This approach must now 
be changed to comply with State rules. 



02/02/18   Page 2 of 5 

To comply with State law, the City will need to reclassify TRHs as either an accessory land use to 
dwelling units, or as an incidental land use that is addressed through licensing only. I would like to 
offer the following suggested zoning regulations for Tourist Rooming Houses (TRHs) for 
consideration: 

Add to Land Use Article; Accessory Land Uses: Subsection 98-206(8), as new subsection (x): 

 

(x) Tourist Rooming House 

Description: Includes all lodging places and tourist cabins and cottages, other than hotels and 
motels, in which sleeping accommodations are offered for pay to tourists and transients. It does 
not include private boarding houses or rooming houses not accommodating tourists or transients, 
or bed and breakfast establishments regulated under ACTP 73. 

1. Permitted by Right: All zoning districts. 

a. Land Use Requirement: 

Tourist Rooming House shall only be located as an Accessory Land Use within a 
Single-Family Detached Dwelling Unit as defined in Section 23-034. 

b. Annual City License Required: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall operate only during the valid period of an Annual 
City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License for each calendar year. Operating 
a Tourist Rooming House without a current version of a valid license shall be 
considered a violation of this Zoning Ordinance, and subject to the penalties of Section 
98-936. The following information shall be provided on an annual basis, prior to 
issuance of said Annual City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License: 

i. Completed City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House Application, which 
includes the property owner name, address, and phone number; the designated 
operator’s name, address, and phone number; the period of operation of up to 
180 days in a calendar year, which must be consecutive; 

ii. A current floor plan for the Tourist Rooming House at a minimum scale of 
one-inch equals 4 feet, and Site Plan of the property at a minimum scale of one-
inch equals ten feet showing on-site parking spaces and trash storage areas; 

iii. General Building Code Inspection by City, and submittal of Official Building 
Code Inspection Report with no outstanding compliance orders remaining; 

iv. Fire Code Inspection by City, and submittal of Official Fire Code Inspection 
Report with no outstanding compliance orders remaining; 

v. Proof of valid property and liability insurance for the dwelling unit; 

vi. State of Wisconsin Tourist Rental House License; 

vii. Seller’s Permit issued by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue; 

viii. City of Lake Geneva Room Tax Permit; and, 

ix. Payment of an Administrative Fee, set annually by the Common Council, to 
cover the costs to the City of administering the above. 

The City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License shall be issued with the 
completion of the above requirements. 



02/02/18   Page 3 of 5 

c. Property Management Requirements: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall be managed consistent with the following 
requirements: 

i. The total number of days of operation within any calendar year shall not 
exceed 180 days, which must be consecutive. This Period of Tourist Rooming 
House Operation shall be specified by the property owner in the required 
annual Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House Application.  

ii. The Minimum Rental Period shall be a minimum of seven consecutive days by 
any one party. 

iii. The Maximum Rental Period shall be no more than [30] [180] consecutive days 
by any one party. 

iv. Similar facilities in which single-family detached homes are available for less 
than seven days, more than 180 days, or throughout the year, are a different 
land use that falls within the Indoor Commercial Lodging land use category. 

v. The Maximum Number of Occupants shall not exceed [the total number 
licensed by the State of Wisconsin] [two per bedroom plus two additional 
occupants, whichever is less] [two per bedroom]. 

vi. The Tourist Rooming House shall be operated by the property owner or by a 
property manager explicitly designated in the valid Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application as the “Designated Operator”. 

vii. The property owner’s and the Designated Operator’s names, addresses, and 
24-hour phone numbers shall be provided in the City of Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application and shall be updated within 24 hours upon any 
change in the property manager or the property manager contact information. 

viii. The Designated Operator must reside within, and have their business located 
within, 25 miles of the Tourist Rooming House parcel. 

ix. The Designated Operator must be available by phone 24 hours, seven days a 
week, during the period of operation designated in the Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application. 

x. Each tourist rooming house shall provide and maintain a Guest Register and 
shall require all guests to register their true names and addresses before 
allowing occupancy. The Guest Register shall be kept intact and available by 
the Designated Operator for inspection by representatives of the City for at 
least one year from the day of the conclusion of the period of operation. 

xi. Each tourist rooming house shall maintain the following written Business 
Record for each rental of the tourist rooming house: the true names and 
addresses of any person renting the property, the dates of the rental period 
(which must be a minimum of seven consecutive days), and the monetary 
amount or consideration paid for the rental. The Business Record shall be kept 
intact and available by the Designated Operator for inspection by 
representatives of the City for at least one year from the day of the conclusion 
of the period of operation. 

 



02/02/18   Page 4 of 5 

d. Property Operational Requirements: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall be operated per the following requirements: 

i. The “Requirements for Tourist Rooming House Guests” form provided by the 
City of Lake Geneva to summarize City requirements for Tourist Rooming 
Houses, and the Site Plan for the subject property clearly depicting guest 
parking spaces and the rear yard, shall be posted on the inside of the front 
door of each tourist rooming house throughout its period of operation.  

ii. Parking Requirements: 

[a] A minimum of two off-street parking spaces shall be provided on the 
subject property for each Tourist Rooming House. If the Tourist 
Rooming House provides three or more bedrooms, an additional on-site 
parking space is required for each additional bedroom over two. 

[b] All guest parking for vehicles and trailers shall be within a parking space 
designated on the Site Plan, on an area paved with concrete or asphalt. 

[c] All guest vehicles and trailers may only park on-site. Street parking for 
guests is not permitted.  

[d] No parking is permitted on gravel, lawn, or planter bed areas. 

iii. Site Appearance Requirements: 

[a] Aside from a changing mix of guests and their vehicles, there shall be no 
evidence of the property being used as a Tourist Rooming House visible 
on the exterior of the subject property. 

[b] No exterior signage related to the Tourist Rooming House is permitted, 
other than the property address. 

[c] No outdoor storage related to the Tourist Rooming House land use is 
permitted, except for typical residential recreational equipment, seating, 
and outdoor cooking facilities which are permitted only within the rear 
yard. 

[d] No recreational vehicle, camper, tent, or other temporary lodging 
arrangement shall be permitted to accommodate guests. 

iv. Neighborhood Impact Requirements: 

[a] No outdoor activity shall occur between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
7:00 a.m. 

[b] At all times, no noise, lighting, odor or other impacts from the subject 
property shall be detectable at the property line at levels exceeding the 
requirements of Article VII of the Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance. 

[c] No vehicular traffic shall be generated by the Tourist Rooming House at 
levels exceeding those typical for a detached single-family dwelling unit. 

v. Tourist Rooming House Advertising: 

[a] No outdoor advertising is allowed on the subject property. 

[b] The Tourist Rooming House shall not be advertised for availability in 
any form of media unless the required City of Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House License has been issued. 



02/02/18   Page 5 of 5 

e. Penalties and License Revocation 

i. Violations of the requirements for Tourist Rooming Houses, the provisions 
of the Tourist Rooming House License, and all other the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance are subject to separate daily fines per Section 98-936. 
Violations will be issued to, and will be the responsibility of, the property 
owner. 

ii. The Annual Tourist Rooming House License may be revoked for more than 
two violations of the requirements of the License, the requirements specific to 
Tourist Rooming Houses, the License, or the remainder of Zoning Code. 


	0. 2 19 2018 Agenda
	1. 1 15 2018 Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a. 306 Center St- Downtown Design
	6.b. 623 W Main St - Downtown Design
	6.c. 640 W Main St - Downtown Design
	6.d. 831 Wrigley Dr - Downtown Design
	7. W1759 Hillside Rd - Gyann - ETJ CSM
	8. JG1400001 - Millard - ETJ CSM
	9. Symphony Bay Non-Exclusive Easements
	10. 11. 12. Stone Ridge - Annexation - Lot Division - Zoning Map Change
	13. 1320 W Main St - CUP
	14. 751 Southwind Dr - PIP
	15. Short Term Rental - Tourist Rooming Houses Memo Jan 30 2018



